
   
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:        August 19, 2021 
 
TO: Pegi Ard, Claire Biancalana, Patti Quillin, Rachael Spencer,  

Rachel Wedeen, Matt Wetstein 
 

 
FROM:       Gun Ruder, CCF President 

 
STAFF:       Eileen Hill, Nancy Machado, Lori Hood 

 
SUBJECT:                Executive Committee Meeting 
                     Thursday, August 26, 2021 
                     9:00 am – 10:30 am 
                     Virtual Zoom Meeting 
 

   
Item Responsibility Page 
A. Regular Open Session   

1. Welcome and Call to Order G. Ruder  
   

2. Approval of Agenda 
We reserve the right to change the order in 
which agenda items are discussed and/or 
acted upon at this meeting. Subject to 
further action, the agenda for this meeting is 
to be approved as presented. Items may be 
added to this agenda for discussion or 
action only as permitted by the Brown Act. 

G. Ruder  

   
3. April 15, 2021  meeting minutes G. Ruder 5 - 8 

 
   

 

1



Executive Committee Agenda 
August 26, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 

 
Item Responsibility Page 
B.  Public Comment   

1. Public Comment Opportunity G. Ruder  
 

C.  Reports  

1. Cabrillo College  President Report   M. Wetstein            
  
2. Executive Director Report 

2.1  2020-21 Fundraising Targets 
       2.2  Fundraising Totals and Goal 

        July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 
               Outright Gifts:                                             $5,992,343 
               Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts:   $   510,000            
               Total:                                                              $6,502,343 

2.3  2020-21 Disbursements to Cabrillo College 
2.4 2021-22 Fundraising Targets 
2.5 Fundraising Totals and Goals 

July 1, 2021 to August 17, 2021 
               Outright Gifts:                                             $     53,349 
               Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts:   $                0             

Total:                                                               $    53,349 
        2.6  Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets and 

             Historical Gifts Chart as of June 30, 2021 

E. Hill          
 

 
 
          
 

9 
10 
11 
 
 
 
 
12– 13  
14 
15 
 
 
 
 
16 
 

 
D.  CLOSED SESSION   

1. Pursuant to California Government Code 54957:                  
       Performance Review of Executive Director     
 
2.   Executive Director Goals 

G. Ruder 
 
 
E. Hill 

Email 
attachment 

 
E.  Return to Open Session   

1.   Report out of Closed Session G. Ruder  
 

F.  Action Items  
1.  April 30, 2021 Financial Statements 

1.1 Balance Sheet  
1.2 Income Statement by Fund 
1.3 Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

P. Ard           
17 – 20  
21 – 23  
24 – 25  

   

2



Executive Committee Agenda 
August 26, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Item Responsibility Page 
F.  Action Items (cont.)   
2. May 31, 2021 Financial Statements 

2.1 Balance Sheet  
2.2 Income Statement by Fund 
2.3 Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

P. Ard           
26 – 29  
30 – 32  
33 – 34  

   
3. June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Financial Statements 

3.1 June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Condensed Narrative 
3.2 Balance Sheet  
3.3 Income Statement by Fund 
3.4 Income Statement Budget-to-Actual 

P. Ard           
35 – 37  
38 – 41  
42 – 44 
45 – 47  

   
4. Governing Document Review 

4.1 Articles of Incorporation 
4.2 Bylaws 
4.3 Master Agreement 

E. Hill 48  
49 – 51  
52 – 66  
67 – 72  

   
5. Authorization of Signer Changes for Cabrillo College 

Foundation 
G. Ruder 73 

   
6. Extend approval for Executive Director to Sign Checks 

up to $5,000 
G. Ruder 74 

   
G.  Informational Items   

1.  Review of CCF Investments as of July 31, 2021 P. Ard                      75 – 81  

   
2.  President’s Circle Campaign Update R. Wedeen 82 
   
3. Women’s Educational Success Update P. Quillin 83 – 84  
   
4.   Scholarships R. Spencer 85 
   
5.   2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation Audit Schedule N. Machado 86 
   
6.   Committee Calendar and Roster G. Ruder                    87 - 88 
   
   

3



Executive Committee Agenda 
August 26, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Item Responsibility Page 
F.  Adjournment   

1. Adjournment G. Ruder                     
 
 

 
 
 

 
UPCOMING EXECUTIVE MEETINGS: 

9:00 – 10:00 a.m. 
---------------- 

10/28/21   
1/27/22     
4/21/22       

 
 
 
 
 

Executive Committee 2020-21 Attendance Chart 
Executive Committee 
Members 

8/27/20 10/22/20 1/21/21 4/15/21 

Pegi Ard P P P P 
Claire Biancalana P P P P 
Owen Brown P P P P 
Linda Burroughs P P P A 
David Heald P P P P 
Gun Ruder A P P P 
Rachael Spencer A P P P 
Matt Wetstein P P P P 

P=Present, A=Absent, N/A=Not applicable, not on committee at that time.  Attendance is 
based on the Executive Committee meeting minutes. Please call the Cabrillo College 
Foundation office if you believe this chart is in error.  
 

4



       
Cabrillo College Foundation  
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 15, 2021 
 
Present: Pegi Ard, Claire Biancalana, Owen Brown, David Heald, Gun Ruder, Rachael Spencer, 

Matt Wetstein 
 
Absent:  Linda Burroughs 
 
Staff:  Eileen Hill, Nancy Machado 
 
 
Call to Order – Claire Biancalana called the meeting to order at 9:01am 
 
Approval of Agenda    
Motion: MSC: P. Ard /G. Ruder The committee voted unanimously to approve the Executive 
Committee agenda.  
 
Public Comment Opportunity   
There were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
Approve Executive Committee Minutes  
Motion: MSC: G. Ruder /P. Aird.   Pegi Ard, Claire Biancalana, Owen Brown, David Heald, Gun Ruder, 
Rachael Spencer and Matt Wetstein voted to approve the Executive Committee Minutes of January 
21, 2021. Linda Burroughs was absent.  
 
Cabrillo College President’s Report 
Matt Wetstein reported that the college is moving into more planning for opening up the campus for 
the fall semester. Student service areas are identifying where they think they can open up and have 
face to face hours delivered. Faculty are eager to come back and internal planning is happening on 
scheduling and safety protocols for in person classes. Graduation will still be remote this year with 
drive through event. 
 
The decline in community college enrollment has taken a big dive nationally and there is hope that 
with vaccinations and childcare situations improving – enrollment will come back.   
 
Matt explained that at this point, a vaccination requirement will not be required for Cabrillo students, 
faculty, and staff. We do not have legal coverage to that as a college and want to avoid the cost for 
tracking vaccinations. Vaccinations will however be required for courses in allied health, where they 
vaccinations are required in clinical settings. Students will still need to wear masks, have temperature 
and symptom checks.  
 
Executive Director’s Report 
Eileen informed the group that the Cabrillo College Foundation PPP Loan has been forgiven! $5M 
has been raised so far this year. A couple of the highlights of what we’ve been able to do this year is 
provide fire and evacuation relief to students and employees, as well as $750 emergency grants to 
DACA students who were not eligible for the CARES funding that was offered to Cabrillo students. 
Eileen reported on proposals that have been submitted and learned that the Community Foundation 

5



Executive Committee minutes 
April 15, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
   
of Santa Cruz County has granted the foundation $20,000 to support emergency grants and $80,000 
for scholarships for single moms. Work is being done with a donor for potential funding of $25,000 to 
support homeless students. In addition to funds raised, $1.7M has been disbursed in first 6 months of 
the fiscal year, with $1.1M going directly to students.  

Approve Financial Statements 
The Finance and Investment Committee received the January 31, 2021 Financial Statements and 
reported on the February 28, 2021 Financial Statements. Pegi Ard reported as of February 28, 2021, 
the total assets were $44.6M, $7.5M over prior year.  Net assets were $42.9M, $7.3M over prior year. 
The total revenue for unrestricted, non-endowed and endowed funds was $8.2M higher than prior 
year. Total expenses were $1.8M with a net surplus for all funds of $8.7M. The total operating 
revenue was $858K and expenses $600K. The operating surplus was $257K.   Motion:  MSC: P. Ard/R. 
Spencer.  The committee voted unanimously to accept the January 31, 2021 and February 28, 2021 
Financial Statements. 
 
2020-21 Budget Overview and 2020-21 Salary Schedules 
Motion:  MSC: G. Ruder / P. Ard.  The committee voted unanimously to approve the retroactive 
salary increases to July 1, 2020 for the three positions whose salary increases were delayed and 
approves the Cabrillo College Foundation 2020-21 salary schedules. 
 
Approve 2021-22 Operating Budget and 2021-22 Salary Schedules 
Motion:  MSC: D. Heald / P. Ard.   The committee voted unanimously to approve the proposed 
2021-22 Operating Budget and the 2021-22 Administrative Salary Schedule and 2021-22 Clerical 
Salary Schedule. 
 
Fundraising Goal 
E. Hill reported that the Foundation has a fundraising goal of $3M for outright and unbooked 
planned gifts for 2021-22.  Motion:  MSC: R. Spencer / D. Heald The committee voted unanimously 
to approve setting the 2021-22 Fundraising Goal of $3M for outright and unbooked planned gifts. 
 
New Board Recommendations 
The Nominating Committee met on March 15, 2021 to discuss prospective Board members, officers, 
college representatives, and Audit Committee members.  The goal was to add three to five new 
members to the Board. The following update shows the Committee’s recommendations. 
 

• New Board Members to recruit:   
Karen Cogswell, Kathy Cowan and Cory Ray 
 

• New Officers:  President:  Gun Ruder 
Vice President: Patty Quillin 
Treasurer: Pegi Ard 
Secretary: Rachel Wedeen 
Assistant Secretary: Matt Wetstein  
Assistant Treasurer: Bradley Olin 
Past President: Claire Biancalana 

 
• College Representatives:   President – Matthew Wetstein 

6



Executive Committee minutes 
April 15, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
   

  Vice President, Student Services – Amy Lehman 
  Vice President, Administrative Services – Bradley Olin 
  Vice President, Instruction – TBD 
  Faculty – Kristin Wilson 
  Trustee - Rachael Spencer  
  Trustee – Dan Rothwell 
  Trustee – Donna Ziel 

 
• Audit Committee Members: Karen Semingson (Chair), Carrie Birkhofer, David Heald, Barbara 

Scherer 
 
Motion:  MSC: D. Heald  /G. Ruder.  The committee voted unanimously to forward the discussed 
new Board members, officers, college representatives, and Audit Committee members to the Board 
of Directors. 
 
Investment Consultant Contract 
Motion:  MSC: P. Ard  /D. Heald  The committee voted unanimously to approve the updated 
Graystone Consulting contract. 
 
Statement of Investment Policy 
Motion:  MSC: P. Ard  /R. Spencer.  The committee voted unanimously to f approve the Statement 
of Investment Policy as presented. 
 
Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets and Historical Gifts Chart  
The ending net assets balance as of February 28, 2021 was $42,898,424. The endowed net assets 
balance was $37,861,380. The endowed historical gifts value was $29,686,255.   
 
President’s Circle 
Linda Burroughs reported that as of April 14, the President's Circle Committee has raised $453,321 
towards the goal of $398,000.  22 new members have joined and a 90% retention rate.  We have 
some fun events coming up that are listed on the memo, including a special Drive-Thru event this 
Saturday for donors giving $1,500 and above. The Culinary students are preparing special picnic 
treats to pick up at the Sesnon House and take to your favorite picnic spots. 
 
Scholarships 
Rachael Spencer reported that we are in the midst of recipient selection for the 2021 scholarship 
award cycle and the Foundation is working closely with Cabrillo faculty and Financial Aid to award 
nearly 400 scholarships.  Awards generally range from $100–$10,000.   
 
WES 
Rachael Spencer reported that Mary Culley and Tonée Picard are the co-chairs for the 2021 WES 
Campaign.  There are four new committee members so far this year: Gail Pellerin, Amy Ivey (Bay Fed), 
Shannon Brady (PAMF), and Chris Maffia (SC County Bank).  The Sharanam Foundation and the 
Wedeen Hammer Locatelli Group at Morgan Stanley will be matching donors again this year and 
have generously increased their support! Together they will provide $20,000 to match gifts of $250 
or greater to the endowment. The WES Event is scheduled for September 10th. 
Governing Document Review 

7



Executive Committee minutes 
April 15, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
   
E. Hill presented the Foundation Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Master Agreement to the 
committee.  These documents are reviewed every three years.  Following staff review, proposed 
revision are: 
• Articles of Incorporation 

- No changes  
• Master Agreement 

- Added missing items listed in AP3600 and sections from Aux Organization Manual Master 
Agreement Sample 

- Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  
• Bylaws 

- Remove the initial one year term for Board Members  
- Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  

 
TIMELINE 
April 15:   Executive Committee first reading of proposed changes. Feedback to be given to 
Foundation by May 15 
May 15:   Governing Documents sent to legal counsel for review  
August 26: Executive Committee approves governing documents 
September 14: Board of Directors approve governing documents 
October 4: Cabrillo Trustees approve governing documents 
 
Committee Calendar & Roster 
Claire Biancalana reviewed the Committee Calendar and Roster. 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:03 am 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Eileen Hill, Executive Director 

 
            Executive Committee 2020-21 Attendance Chart 

Executive Committee 
Members 

8/27/20 10/22/20 1/21/21 4/15/21 

Pegi Ard P P P P 
Claire Biancalana P P P P 
Owen Brown P P P P 
Linda Burroughs P P P A 
David Heald P P P P 
Gun Ruder A P P P 
Rachael Spencer A P P P 
Matt Wetstein P P P P 

P=Present, A=Absent, N/A=Not applicable, not on committee at that time.  Attendance is based on the Executive 
Committee meeting minutes. Please call the Cabrillo College Foundation office if you believe this chart is in error.  

8



• Audit preparation 

• Transitioning and adjusting in-person plans 

• Scholarship Administration 

• 2020-21 Final Reporting 
- Raised $6,502,343, which includes $3.7M in endowed  

permanent support (the most raised in a year!)  
- 1,496 donors, including 343 new donors  
- 100% Board member giving 
- Put $1.4M in the hands of students through our scholarships 

 

 

  
  

  
 

  
 
 

 
   

 

  

• President’s Circle:   $38,632  raised; first committee meeting  
is August 24 

• Women’s Educational Success:  $47,875 raised, 1700 invitations to  
WES Luncheon have been mailed, $100,000 to award this year 

• Proposals: Monterey Peninsula Foundation $81,500 for homeless  
student support, PAMF/Sutter $17,500 for Allied Health  

• Scholarships:  establishing 3 new scholarships, stewardship for over 200 existing  
scholarship donors  

 

Fundraising 

Executive Director Report: August 2021 

Administration 

 

• President’s Circle Committee Campaign Kick-Off (virtual):  
August 24, 5:30 – 7:00 pm 

• Women’s Educational Success Celebration (virtual):  
September 10, 12:00 – 1:00 pm 

• Board of Directors Meeting (virtual):   
September 14, 12:00 – 2:00 pm  

• President’s Circle Events: Stay tuned! 

 

 

Upcoming Events 

9



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 19, 2021 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM:  Eileen Hill 

SUBJECT: 2020-21 Fundraising Targets 

The Board approved a $3M fundraising goal in outright and unbooked planned gifts.  The following 
is an outline of the specific fundraising targets for the year to reach $3M.  The $3M goal includes a 
target of $760,000 in endowed gifts and $500,000 in unbooked planned gifts.  Focusing some effort 
on legacy giving will help ensure the long-term health and sustainability of the Foundation. 

Amount Raised 
7/1/20 – 6/30/21 

2020-21 Target 

$451,843 $398,000 President’s Circle 
$0 $50,000 Annual Fund 
$207,754 $175,000 Women’s Educational Success 
$285,710 $150,000 Cabrillo Advancement Program (Endowed) 

$545,233 $500,000 Scholarships (Endowed) 

$1,098,030 $250,000 Scholarships (Nonendowed) 

$556,848 $477,000 Faculty/Department Support (Faculty Grants, Allied 
Health, Athletics, VAPA, etc.) 

$2,770,925 $250,000 Student Support Services (veterans, foster youth, 
tutoring, girls in engineering, etc.) 

$76,000 $250,000 Donor directed interests 
$510,000 $500,000 Unbooked Planned Gifts 
$6,502,343 $3,000,000 TOTAL 

10



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\Fundraising Totals 2020-21 08.04.21.docx 

DATE: 

TO: 

August 19, 2021 

Executive Committee 

FROM: Eileen Hill 

July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 
Outright Gifts $   5,992,343 
Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts        $      510,000 
Total $ 6,502,343 

2020-21 Fundraising Goal for Outright and Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $   3,000,000 
Recorded Gifts 07-01-20 to 06-30-21: 

  Anonymous (Tutoring)    $     2,600,000 
  The Grove Foundation (Scholarship)   $    310,000 

    SD Trombetta Foundation (Peace Library, Internships & Scholarship)   $   300,000 
    Peter Weber & Victor Ruder (Fire Relief, Scholarships)               $          150,500 
    The Barbara Samper Foundation (CAP)    $   125,000 
    Colligan Family Charitable Fund (Scholarship)   $   105,000 

Richard & Theresa Crocker (Fire Relief, President’s Circle) $  101,500 
Paul & Pat Shirley (CAP & Scholarship) $   100,250 
Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County $   100,000 
Davidson Family Foundation (Scholarship) $   100,000 
Monterey Peninsula Foundation (Grant) $   90,000 
Estate of Hal Hyde (President’s Circle, CAP) $   82,000 
LAM Research Foundation (NetLab) $  76,000 
Gitta Ryle (Scholarship) $              60,013 
Pajaro Valley Community Health Trust (Scholarships)  $             54,200 
Joan Griffiths (Tutoring, WES, Nursing, Stroke Center, President’s Circle, $   53,157 

       Scholarship) 
Brian & Patti Herman (Fire Relief, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $ 50,562 
California College Pathways Fund (Guardian Scholars) $   40,000 
The Peggy & Jack Baskin Foundation (Fire Relief, WES & $ 38,000 
         Girls in Engineering) 
Claire Biancalana & William Kelsay (Fire Relief, President’s Circle, $    26,538 
         Scholarship, WES, Athletics) 
Anonymous (Emergency Grants) $            25,000 
Christopher Nutley (Scholarship) $    25,000 
Sutter Health Palo Alto Medical Foundation (Allied Health, WES) $    22,500 
Rachel Wedeen (Fire Relief, WES, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $        20,800 
Anonymous (Scholarship) $            20,410 
Leestma Family Foundation/Little Flower Fund (Scholarship) $            20,000 
Julie Packard (WES & President’s Circle) $            20,000 
Miles & Rosanne Reiter (President’s Circle) $            20,000 
Craig Rowell & Corinda Ray (WES, President’s Circle, Scholarship) $            20,000 
Foundation for California Community Colleges (Scholarship) $            19,100 
Estate of Richard Lynde (Scholarship) $            17,421 
George & Diane Koenig (CAP, Scholarship & President’s Circle) $            17,206 
Patty Quillin & Reed Hastings (WES & President’s Circle) $            16,000 
     Gifts under $15,000 (1,464 of 1,496 total donors) $  1,256,686 
Total Outright Gifts $   5,992,343 
Total Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $    510,000 
     TOTAL $   6,502,343 

Notes:  1. For 2020-21, The Cabrillo College Foundation has been notified of two planned gifts.
2. The cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts total is $26,305,000.

11



 
 

24%
Faculty/Dept 

Support
$518,339

11%
Student Support Services

$241,65565%
Scholarships 
$1,383,716

Disbursements to Cabrillo College and Students
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Total: $2,143,710

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty/Department Support  24% $518,339 
(Allied Health, Athletics, Faculty Grants, VAPA)   
   
Student Support Services 11% $241,655 
(Foster Youth, CAP, Children's Center, Peace Library)   
   
Scholarships 65% $1,383,716 

   
 TOTAL $2,143,710 

 

12



 
 

38%

37%

10%

6%

4%
3% 2%

2020-21 STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES
$241,655

Guardian Scholars $92,623

Cabrillo Advancement Program $89,869

Children's Center/Peace Library $24,578

Student Groups $13,433

Internships $9,011

Faculty/Staff Professional Development $8,309

Honors Program $3,832

23%

20%

17%

10%

9%

5%

4%

7%
3% 2%

2020-21 FACULTY AND DEPARTMENT SUPPORT
$518,339

Stroke Center $118,886

Faculty Grants $103,388

Natural & Applied Sciences $87,442

Allied Health $52,210

Athletics $44,993

Facilities $24,510

Multiple Funds $23,799

Visual, Applied, & Performing Arts $38,743

Faculty/Staff Fire Relief Grants $14,350

Business, English, Language Arts $10,018

 

 

13



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   August 19, 2021 
 
TO:  Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: 2021-22 Fundraising Targets 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board approved a $3M fundraising goal in outright and unbooked planned gifts. The following 
is an outline of the specific fundraising targets for the year to reach $3M.  The $3M goal includes a 
target of $850,000 in endowed gifts and $500,000 in unbooked planned gifts. Focusing efforts on 
endowed gifts and legacy giving will help ensure the long-term health and sustainability of the 
Foundation. 
 

Amount Raised 
7/1/21-8/17/21 

2021-22 Target  

$4,700 $430,000  President’s Circle 
$0 $50,000  Annual Fund 
$25,907 $175,000 Women’s Educational Success 
$215 $200,000  Cabrillo Advancement Program (Endowed) 

$7,005 $500,000  Scholarships (Endowed) 

$14,407 $250,000 Scholarships (Nonendowed)  

$1,015 $395,000  Faculty/Department Support (Faculty Grants, Allied 
Health, Athletics, VAPA, etc.) 

$100 $250,000 Student Support Services (foster youth, internships, 
tutoring, etc.) 

$0 $250,000  Donor directed interests 
$0 $500,000 Unbooked Planned Gifts 

$53,349 $3,000,000  TOTAL 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Approve setting $3,000,000 fundraising goal for outright and unbooked planned gifts for 2021-22. 
 

 
 

14



Notes:    1. The cumulative unbooked revocable planned gifts total is $26,305,000. 

 
 

 
 

DATE: 
 
TO: 

August 19, 2021 
 

Executive Committee 

 

FROM: Eileen Hill 

 
July 1, 2021 to August 17, 2021 
Outright Gifts Fundraising Total 

 
$         53,349 

 Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts        $                    0  
 Total $         53,349 

2021-22 Goal for Outright and Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $    3,000,000 
Recorded Gifts 07-01-21 to 08-17-21: 

Olivia Bodnar (Scholarship) $      5,060 
Penelope Rich & William Hill (WES) $      5,000   
Jack Farr (President’s Circle) $      3,000 
Amy Newell (WES) $      2,500 
Eileen & Dave Hill (President’s Circle, WES, CAP, $      2,052 
       Scholarship and Student Veterans) 
Eugene & Janice Corriden (Scholarship) $      2,000 
Kaiser Permanente Foundation Health Plan Inc. (WES) $      2,000 
Rotary Club of Santa Cruz (Scholarship) $      1,950 
Nancy Mead (Scholarship) $      1,500 
Ever Loved, Inc. (Scholarship) $      1,222 
Equisance Inc. (Scholarship) $      1,000 
Karen Groppi (Scholarship) $       1,000 
Randy & Janet Krassow (WES) $      1,000 
Leo & Sharla Ortega (Scholarship) $      1,000 
Gail Pellerin (Scholarship) $      1,000 
Megan Caspers (Scholarship) $         600 
Mark DeSmet & Corey Ridings (Scholarship) $         600 
William & Jill Harmon (Stroke Center) $         600 
Paula Gomez (WES) $         512 
Byron Baker (Scholarship) $          500 
Cathy Conway & Soma Goresky (WES) $         500 
Halimah Delaine Prado (WES) $         500 
Eric Fontana (Scholarship) $         500   
Grassland Fund (Scholarship) $         500 
Joyce Nordquist (WES) $         500 
Carlos Palacios (Scholarship) $         500 
Terilyn Reese (WES) $         500 
Rotary Club of Santa Cruz Sunrise Foundation (Cabrillo Stage) $         500 
Ronald & Cynthia Sekkel (WES) $         500 
Sara Steffen (Scholarship) $         500 
Charlotte Williams (WES) $         500 
Grant & Pamela Ring (CAP) $         400 
     Gifts under $399 (115 of 147 total donors) $           13,353   
Total Outright Gifts $          53,349 
Total Unbooked Revocable Planned Gifts $                     0 
     TOTAL $          53,349 
 

15



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Finance\Agendas for Meetings\Finance Agendas 21-22\2021 08 19\Drafts\Net Assets Report By Year 2000-2021 Current

Total Net Assets highest level was $45,669,484 as of May 31, 2021
Endowed Net Assets highest level was $40,399,772 as of May 31, 2021

Endowed Historical Gifts highest level was $30,268,173 on June 30, 2021

Total Net Assets
$44,940,844

Endowed  
Net Assets

$40,066,211

Endowed 
Historical Gifts
$30,268,173

$5,000,000

$7,500,000

$10,000,000

$12,500,000

$15,000,000

$17,500,000

$20,000,000

$22,500,000

$25,000,000

$27,500,000

$30,000,000

$32,500,000

$35,000,000

$37,500,000

$40,000,000

$42,500,000

$45,000,000

$47,500,000

6/30/01 6/30/02 6/30/03 6/30/04 6/30/05 6/30/06 6/30/07 6/30/08 6/30/09 6/30/10 6/30/11 6/30/12 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19 6/30/20 6/30/21

Cabrillo College Foundation
Total Net Assets, Endowed Net Assets, and Endowed Historical Gifts

June 30, 2001 to June 30, 2021

Total Net Assets Total Endowed Net Assets Endowed Historical Gifts

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 
08.26\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 6.30.21 updated 8.18.21.doc 

CABRILLO COLLEGE FOUNDATION 
June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Condensed Narrative  

Updated August 5, 2021 
 

 
(1) Balance Sheet 
 

• Total Assets: 
Total assets of $47.6M are $10.4M over prior year primarily due to the increase in value 
of the assets in the investment accounts.  

 
• Receivables: 

Total pledges receivable are $243K less than prior year primarily due to an annual 
pledge payment of $300K.  
 

• Liabilities: 
Total Liabilities of $2.7M are $232K less than prior year.  Accounts payable balance was 
$59K less and all scholarship liabilities were lower than prior year. CAP Scholarships are 
lower than normal because there were no CAP recipients awarded this year.    
 

• Net Assets: 
Total net assets of $44.9M are $10.8 more than prior year.   

 
(2) Income Statement 
 

• Revenue: 
Total Revenue is $10.8 higher than prior year. Earned income as of June 30, 2021 is 
$8.2M compared to the prior year balance of $451K due to higher investment and fee 
income earned.  Contributed income of $6.1M is $3.0M higher than prior year.  
Restricted contributions were $2.9M more than prior year partially due to a $2.6M 
donation received this year. The PPP loan forgiveness of $103K added a boost to 
contributions this year as well. 
 

• Expenses: 
Total Expenses of $3.6M are $1.0M under prior year.  The total of Nonendowed 
Program Expenses and Endowed Program Expenses were $346k lower than prior year. 
Scholarships were $499K lower than prior year.   
 

• Surplus/Deficit: 
As of June 30, 2021, the Cabrillo College Foundation has a $10.7M surplus compared 
to prior year deficit of $1.1M.  
 

(3) Operational Budget to Actual  
 

• Revenue: 

35



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 
08.26\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 6.30.21 updated 8.18.21.doc 

Operating revenue of $1.3M is $346K favorable vs budget. The endowment 
management fees are $188K favorable vs budget.  Contributed income was $45K 
favorable, despite suspending the Annual Fund Campaign.  
 President’s Circle had another incredible year; raising $94K more than budget.  The 
PPP loan forgiveness provided a boost of $103K. 
 

• Expenses: 
Operating expenses of $915K are $105K favorable vs projection primarily due to lower 
salaries, payroll taxes and benefits due to staffing pattern changes because of COVID. 
Annual Fund salaries were lower due to the suspension of the campaign and one 
regular part-time employee chose not to work from home when our office 
transitioned to working from home. There were savings in events and lower than 
expected Accounting/Legal and Professional fees and uncollectible pledges.   
 

• Surplus/Deficit: 
The operating fund surplus is $393,301 prior to audit.  This number will be updated 
when the annual adjustments for the CalPERS liability and the Retiree Medical 
Insurance liability are calculated during the course of the audit.  Any surplus will be 
allocated to the Operating Reserve account to fulfill the goal of having 6 months of 
operating reserve. We have $509,995 in reserve pre-audit as of June 30, 2021.  This is 
94% of our 21-22 operating reserve goal of $541,266.   
 

       (4) Investment Report – June 30, 2021 
 
• Our return on investments for the MS Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  

 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 
 

Actual Return:    -0.1% 
Benchmark Return:   -0.2% 
Difference:        0.1% 
 

• Our return on investments for the MS ESG Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  
 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 

    
Actual Return:      1.0% 
Benchmark Return:     1.0% 
Difference:                          0.0%  
 

• Our return on investments for the MS Intermediate-Term Pool year to date as of  
 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 

    
Actual Return:      0.2% 
Benchmark Return:     0.1% 
Difference:                         0.1%  
 

• Our return on investments for the MS Short-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of  
 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 

    

36



\\sol\Private\President\Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 Agendas\2021 
08.26\Drafts\CCF Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 6.30.21 updated 8.18.21.doc 

Actual Return:     0.1% 
Benchmark Return:    0.1% 
Difference:                        0.0%  
 

 
• Our return on investments for the MS Title III Pool fiscal year to date as of  

 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 
    

Actual Return:     0.2% 
Benchmark Return:    0.2% 
Difference:                        0.0%  

 
• Our return on investments for the MS Title V Pool fiscal year to date as of  

 July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows: 
    

Actual Return:     0.4% 
Benchmark Return:    0.4% 
Difference:                        0.0%  
 
 

 

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   August 19, 2021 
 
TO:  Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Eileen Hill 
 
SUBJECT: Governing Document Review 
 
 
The Council for Advancement and Support of Education (CASE) recommends that the following 
governing documents are reviewed every three years. As an Auxiliary Organization of Cabrillo 
College, Administrative Procedure 3600 (AP3600) is the master governing document set forth from 
the Chancellor’s office that informs the governing documents. Following staff review, proposed 
revisions were sent to legal counsel for review to ensure compliance with all current laws and to 
confirm our policies align with Cabrillo College Board Policy and Administrative Procedure 3600 
(Auxiliary Organizations). 
 

• Articles of Incorporation 
o No changes  

• Master Agreement 
o Added missing items listed in AP3600 and sections from Aux Organization Manual 

Master Agreement Sample 
o Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  
o Update signatures of witnessing parties 
o Add the approved and amended date at the bottom of the document. 

• Bylaws 
o Remove the initial one year term for Board Members  
o Fine tuning for clarity and removed duplication  
o Add the approved and amended date at the bottom of the document. 

 
TIMELINE 
April 15:   Executive Committee first reading of proposed changes. Feedback to be given to 

Foundation by May 15 
May 15:   Governing Documents sent to legal counsel for review  
August 26:  Executive Committee approves governing documents 
September 14: Board of Directors approve governing documents 
October 4:  Cabrillo Trustees approve governing documents 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Approve Cabrillo College Foundation Bylaws and Master Agreement as amended. 

48



49



50



51



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH1]: Attorney to check all 
references to Codes, etc.  

Commented [EES2R1]: Confirmed. 

Deleted: 

52



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH3]: Does not match Section 
listed in Articles of Incorp 

Commented [EES4R3]: 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
expressly references the section that is 

referred to in the Articles and appears to 

be a more specific explanation of the 

Foundation’s structure as an auxiliary 

organization. We could add 170(c)(2) but I 

recommend leaving the more specific cite 

in regardless. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES5]: This language mirrors the 
language in AP 3600 

53



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

54



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH7]: Consult attorney if 
“Annual Meeting” call out is necessary 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES9R8]: No, it’s not. 

55



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

56



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

57



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

59



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

Commented [EES11]: This language is pulled 
from AP 3600. 

60



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

62



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 

63



 

O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

64



O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

Commented [EES12]: This language does not 
appear to be included in AP 3600. 

Commented [EH13R12]: Remove 

65



O:\ \Foundation\Committees\Executive\Agendas for Meetings\2021-22 

Agendas\2021 08.26\Drafts\CCF Bylaws DRAFT 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

66



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Commented [EH1]: More relevant information to Foundation’s 
mission, taken from Aux Org Manual Sample Master Agreement.  

67



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Deleted: 

Commented [EH2]: Not relevant to Foundation. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EH3]: Update to $24,821 – new valuation based 
on recent comps 

Deleted: 

68



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES8]: This language is from the Chancellor’s 
Office current template. 

Deleted: 

Commented [EES9]: The Chancellor’s Office template includes 
an automatic reverter to the District. That language does not 
appear to be inconsistent with the Foundation’s current Articles of 
Incorporation, however, a reverter is not required by law in the 
Agreement, so I just wanted to bring this issue to the Foundation’s 
attention for consideration. 

Commented [EH10R9]: Staff determined better to keep  

69



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Formatted: Left

Commented [EH11]: Per AP3600 this must be in Master 
Agreement. 

Commented [EES12]: This language is from the Chancellor’s 
Office template. 

Deleted: 

70



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: 

71



o:\president\foundation\committees\executive\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 8.18.21.docx 

Deleted: \\sol\private\president\foundation\committees\executi
ve\agendas for meetings\2021-22 agendas\2021 
08.26\drafts\master agreement draft 
8.18.21.docxo:\foundation\governance\master agreements\2018 
master agreement\master agreement adopted 10-1-18.docx

Commented [EH14]: Added from Aux Manual Master 
Agreement sample 

Deleted: 

Deleted: 

72



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:   August 19, 2021 
 
TO:  Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Gun Ruder 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization of Signer Changes for Cabrillo College Foundation 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Kathleen Welch, the Vice President of Instruction has retired. Kathleen served as one of the 
authorized signers on the Cabrillo College Foundation banking accounts. Effective June 15, 
2021 Paul De La Cerda became Vice President of Instruction and is recommended to become 
an authorized signer. 
 
Susan Gochis, the Vice President of Student Services terminated her employment at Cabrillo 
College last year. A permanent candidate for her position has not been hired. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Approve removing Kathleen Welch and Susan Gochis and adding Paul De La Cerda as an 
authorized signer for the Cabrillo College Foundation banking accounts. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

73



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 19, 2021 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM:  Gun Ruder 

SUBJECT: Extend approval for Executive Director to Sign Checks up to $5,000 

BACKGROUND 
On April 16, 2020 the Executive Committee approved increasing the level of checks requiring 
double signature from $2,500 to $5,000 due to the COVID-19 pandemic with the understanding 
that the need for the increased limit would be revisited at a later date. 

For the 2020-21 fiscal year, the Executive Director signed 21 checks between $2,500 and $5,000 out 
of 638 total checks signed. Of the 21 checks between $2,500 - $5,000, 11 were for Cabrillo College. 

Due to the uncertainty posed by the Delta variant the Foundation staff is continuing to work from 
home. It is recommended that the Cabrillo College Foundation Executive Director continue to sign 
Cabrillo College Foundation checks up to $5,000 to reduce the need to for additional contact and 
increase efficiency.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Extend authorization for the Cabrillo College Foundation Executive Director having the authority to 
sign Cabrillo College Foundation checks up to $5,000 and revisit in one year. 

74



Asset Allocation by Composite Asset Allocation by Segment

Segments
Market Value

($)
Allocation

(%)

Domestic Equity 11,493,089 27.0¢£

International Equity 11,137,387 26.1¢£

Domestic Fixed Income 14,343,593 33.7¢£

Alternative Investment 1,256,461 2.9¢£

Private Equity 1,041,508 2.4¢£

Global Other 1,446,623 3.4¢£

Cash Equivalent 1,903,224 4.5¢£

Market Value
($)

Allocation
(%)

Long-Term Portfolio 31,857,793 74.7¢£

ESG Long-Term Portfolio 1,879,798 4.4¢£

Intermediate Portfolio 2,285,618 5.4¢£

Short-Term Portfolio 2,945,888 6.9¢£

ESG Cash Management 1,883,121 4.4¢£

Title III Endowment Portfolio 483,990 1.1¢£

Title V Endowment Portfolio 1,285,677 3.0¢£

Total Fund
Domestic

Equity
International

Equity
Domestic

Fixed Income
Alternative
Investment

Private Equity Global Other
Cash

Equivalent

Cabrillo College Foundation 42,621,884 11,493,089 11,137,387 14,343,593 1,256,461 1,041,508 1,446,623 1,903,224

Long-Term Portfolio 31,857,793 10,517,165 10,304,823 5,766,271 1,231,332 1,041,508 1,446,623 1,550,071

ESG Long-Term Portfolio 1,879,798 685,290 572,716 533,665 25,128 - - 62,999

Intermediate Portfolio 2,285,618 - - 2,272,739 - - - 12,879

Short-Term Portfolio 2,945,888 - - 2,920,701 - - - 25,187

ESG Cash Management 1,883,121 - - 1,883,121 - - - -

Title III Endowment Portfolio 483,990 47,037 46,991 157,872 - - - 232,090

Title V Endowment Portfolio 1,285,677 243,598 212,857 809,224 - - - 19,998

Cabrillo College Foundation
As of July 31, 2021

Page 4 75



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

Target Allocation Actual Allocation

0.0% 15.0% 30.0% 45.0% 60.0%

Cash & Equivalents

Alternative Investments

Fixed Income

International Equity

US Equity

5.0%

10.0%

20.0%

32.5%

32.5%

4.4%

9.7%

17.6%

32.8%

35.5%

Long-Term Portfolio - Gross

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

4/99 4/01 4/03 4/05 4/07 4/09 4/11 4/13 4/15 4/17 4/19 7/21

$4,343.00

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Long-Term Portfolio - Gross 05/01/99

   Beginning Market Value 31,908,049 5,808,118

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals - 3,225,545

   Gain/Loss -50,256 22,824,129

   Ending Market Value 31,857,793 31,857,793

Long-Term Portfolio - Gross Long-Term Portfolio - Net Composite Benchmark S&P 500 Total Return MSCI EAFE Net BC Gov/Cr Intm

0.0

15.0

30.0

45.0

-15.0

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Long-Term Portfolio - Gross -0.08 -0.08 9.83 23.97 9.53 10.18 8.50 6.82 05/01/1999

Long-Term Portfolio - Net -0.16 -0.16 9.51 23.45 9.04 9.67 7.86 6.20 05/01/1999

Composite Benchmark -0.03 -0.03 9.38 23.49 9.64 10.16 8.34 6.40 05/01/1999

S&P 500 Total Return 2.38 2.38 17.99 36.44 18.16 17.35 15.35 7.53 05/01/1999

MSCI EAFE Net 0.75 0.75 9.65 30.31 7.66 9.35 6.14 4.62 05/01/1999

BC Gov/Cr Intm 0.77 0.77 -0.14 0.21 4.95 2.73 2.70 4.32 05/01/1999

Cabrillo College Foundation
Long-Term Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

Page 8 76



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

Target Allocation Actual Allocation

0.0% 15.0% 30.0% 45.0% 60.0%

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Alternative Investment

Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

5.0%

0.0%

30.0%

32.5%

32.5%

3.4%

1.3%

28.4%

30.5%

36.5%

ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Gross

$800.00

$1,000.00

$1,200.00

$1,400.00

$1,600.00

$1,800.00

5/16 11/16 5/17 11/17 5/18 11/18 5/19 11/19 5/20 11/20 7/21

$1,617.13

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Gross 06/01/16

   Beginning Market Value 1,861,953 572,092

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals - 837,152

   Gain/Loss 17,845 470,554

   Ending Market Value 1,879,798 1,879,798

ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Gross ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Net Composite Benchmark

S&P 500 Total Return MSCI EAFE Net BC Gov/Cr Intm

0.0

15.0

30.0

45.0

-15.0

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Gross 1.05 1.05 9.29 23.18 11.80 9.75 06/01/2016

ESG Long-Term Portfolio - Net 0.96 0.96 8.95 22.60 11.29 9.25 06/01/2016

Composite Benchmark 0.35 0.35 8.70 22.66 11.27 9.91 06/01/2016

S&P 500 Total Return 2.38 2.38 17.99 36.44 18.16 17.62 06/01/2016

MSCI EAFE Net 0.75 0.75 9.65 30.31 7.66 9.36 06/01/2016

BC Gov/Cr Intm 0.77 0.77 -0.14 0.21 4.95 2.98 06/01/2016

Cabrillo College Foundation
ESG Long-Term Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

Page 14 77



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

Target Allocation Actual Allocation

0.0% 50.0% 100.0% 150.0%

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Fixed Income

0.0%

100.0%

0.6%

99.4%

Intermediate Portfolio - Gross

$975.00

$1,000.00

$1,025.00

$1,050.00

$1,075.00

$1,100.00

12/18 3/19 6/19 9/19 12/19 3/20 6/20 9/20 12/20 3/21 7/21

$1,084.82

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Intermediate Portfolio - Gross 01/01/19

   Beginning Market Value 2,283,309 305,006

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals - 1,935,021

   Gain/Loss 2,309 45,591

   Ending Market Value 2,285,618 2,285,618

Intermediate Portfolio - Gross Intermediate Portfolio - Net Composite Benchmark

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-1.0

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
2

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Intermediate Portfolio - Gross 0.22 0.22 0.28 0.57 2.70 3.20 01/01/2019

Intermediate Portfolio - Net 0.10 0.10 -0.07 0.10 2.22 2.70 01/01/2019

Composite Benchmark 0.21 0.21 0.24 0.50 2.46 2.93 01/01/2019

Cabrillo College Foundation
Intermediate Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

Page 17 78



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

July 31, 2021 : $2,946

Segments
Market Value

($000)
Allocation

(%)

Domestic Fixed Income 2,920.70 99.15¢£

Cash Equivalent 25.19 0.85¢£

Short-Term Portfolio

$990.00

$1,005.00

$1,020.00

$1,035.00

$1,050.00

12/17 6/18 12/18 6/19 12/19 6/20 12/20 7/21

$1,043.23

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Short-Term Portfolio 01/01/18

   Beginning Market Value 2,985,656 2,847,882

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals -42,951 -52,739

   Gain/Loss 3,183 150,744

   Ending Market Value 2,945,888 2,945,888

Short-Term Portfolio Cash Management Composite*

0.0

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Short-Term Portfolio 0.11 0.11 0.36 0.55 1.17 1.19 01/01/2018

Cash Management Composite* 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.60 0.63 01/01/2018

Cabrillo College Foundation
Short-Term Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

*Cash Management Composite is 50/50 FTSE T-Bills 30 Day and Cash

Page 20 79



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

Target Allocation Actual Allocation

0.0% 25.0% 50.0% 75.0% 100.0%

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

10.0%

60.0%

15.0%

15.0%

48.0%

32.6%

9.7%

9.7%

Title III Portfolio - Gross

$800.00

$1,000.00

$1,200.00

$1,400.00

$1,600.00

$1,800.00

10/12 7/13 4/14 1/15 10/15 7/16 4/17 1/18 10/18 7/19 4/20 7/21

$1,676.48

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Title III Portfolio - Gross 11/01/12

   Beginning Market Value 423,075 129,011

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals 60,000 260,697

   Gain/Loss 915 94,282

   Ending Market Value 483,990 483,990

Title III Portfolio - Gross Title III Portfolio - Net Composite Benchmark

0.0

3.0

6.0

9.0

12.0

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Title III Portfolio - Gross 0.22 0.22 4.13 9.43 5.73 6.33 5.07 6.08 11/01/2012

Title III Portfolio - Net 0.20 0.20 3.97 9.14 5.45 6.02 4.73 5.73 11/01/2012

Composite Benchmark 0.30 0.30 3.83 8.88 4.93 5.47 4.77 5.65 11/01/2012

Cabrillo College Foundation
Title III Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

Page 22 80



Asset Allocation Analysis Growth of a Thousand Dollars

Performance

Target Allocation Actual Allocation

0.0% 25.0% 50.0% 75.0% 100.0%

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

10.0%

60.0%

15.0%

15.0%

1.6%

62.9%

16.6%

18.9%

Title V Portfolio - Gross

$750.00

$1,000.00

$1,250.00

$1,500.00

$1,750.00

$2,000.00

1/11 1/12 1/13 1/14 1/15 1/16 1/17 1/18 1/19 1/20 7/21

$1,827.28

Quarter
To Date

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Title V Portfolio - Gross 02/01/11

   Beginning Market Value 1,281,168 99,321

   Net Deposits/Withdrawals - 723,766

   Gain/Loss 4,508 462,590

   Ending Market Value 1,285,677 1,285,677

Title V Portfolio - Gross Title V Portfolio - Net Composite Benchmark

0.0

4.0

8.0

12.0

16.0

R
et

u
rn

QTD
Fiscal
YTD

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Title V Portfolio - Gross 0.38 0.38 5.03 11.57 6.72 6.90 5.46 5.90 5.91 02/01/2011

Title V Portfolio - Net 0.35 0.35 4.83 11.20 6.40 6.57 5.10 5.52 5.53 02/01/2011

Composite Benchmark 0.48 0.48 4.51 10.19 5.61 5.88 5.06 5.64 5.66 02/01/2011

Cabrillo College Foundation
Title V Portfolio Summary

As of July 31, 2021

Page 25 81



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  August 19, 2021   
 
TO:  Executive Committee  
 
FROM:  Rachel Wedeen   
 
SUBJECT: President’s Circle Campaign 
 
 
2020-21 President’s Circle  
For 2020-21 President’s Circle raised $463,000! This is the most ever raised for the President’s Circle and a 
9% increase over the previous year.  A total of 1,092 invitations were mailed to potential donors and 
committee members made follow-up calls to prospects. We had 22 new members join and 13 rejoining 
members increased their support. We have a 94% retention rate. 
 
2021-22 President’s Circle Committee 
The President’s Circle Kick-off Celebration will be held on Tuesday, August 24 via Zoom. Vance Landis 
Carey and Linda Burroughs are co-chairs of the 2021-22 President’s Circle Committee. Kathryn Cowan, 
Jim Emerson, Burt Rees and Paula Woods have agreed to join the committee this year. President’s Circle 
committee members will soon be working to review their prospect lists. 
 

 
President’s Circle Events 

Due to Covid-19, all events will be planned with an eye to safety and well-being of guests and staff. All events 
are subject to change. 

 
President’s Holiday Party ($1,000+ donors)       Dec. 3, 2021 

Virtual Back to School Celebration ($1,000+ donors)     October 2021 

Virtual Historical Tour led by Sandy Lydon ($1,000+)     April/May 2022 

President’s Plus Drive-Thru Picnic ($1,500+)       Summer 2022 

Winemaker’s Dinner at Sesnon House ($2,500+)      May 2022 

Dinner at the home of Vance Landis Carey ($5,000+)     May/June 2022 

Feasting with Faculty ($10,000+)        Summer 2022 

Homemade Pizza Party at the home of Claire Biancalana and Bill Kelsay ($15,000+) Summer 2022 

 

 

82



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 19, 2021 

TO: Executive Committee  

FROM:  Patty Quillin  

SUBJECT: 2021 Women’s Educational Success (WES) 

 WES grants are a critical resource for faculty on campus, empowering them to send a lifeline to a 
struggling student. With today's current financial instability, these grants will be relied on more 
than ever to keep deserving students in school. 

This year a total of $100,000 will be given out to students in need at Cabrillo through the WES 
program—the most WES has ever awarded.  

WES COMMITTEE (BEST FRIENDS): 
• Tonée Picard and Mary Culley are co-chairs for the 2021 WES Campaign
• New to the committee this year: Shannon Brady, Kathryn Cowan, Cynthia FitzGerald, Amy

Ivey, Chris Maffia, Martina O’Sullivan and Gail Pellerin
• 2021 Best Friends: Shannon Brady, Sue Broadston, Lynette Cleland, Cathy Conway, Freny

Cooper, Kathryn Cowan, Cynthia Druley, Cynthia FitzGerald, Corrine Flanagan, Peggy Flynn,
Pam Goodman, Amy Ivey, Kathleen Jones, Janet Krassow, Chris Maffia, Angie McClellan,
Martina O’Sullivan, Mara Palandrani, Gail Pellerin, Carolyn Parham, Patty Quillin, Karen
Semingson, Bunny Tavares, Kate Terrell, Karri White, Kristin Wilson, Donna Ziel

EVENT: 
• Although we had originally planned to host our WES event in person this year, we have

recently decided to pivot to an online event due to concerns over the trajectory of the delta
variant. While we are disappointed that we will not get to see our supporters in person, we
look forward to creating a meaningful virtual event for our WES donors. We are beginning to
notify our donors of this change.

• The virtual WES event will be held on Friday, September 10, 2021 from 12:00 – 1:00pm via
Zoom.

2021 CAMPAIGN: 
• The WES Committee, now consisting of 27 Best Friends, recently sent out personalized WES

invitations to nearly 1,700 potential donors.
• Thanks to a generous grant of $20,000 from the Sharanam Foundation and the Wedeen

Hammer Locatelli Group at Morgan Stanley, donations of $250 or more will be matched!
• As of August 17, $85,312 has been received for the 2021 WES campaign and any donations

made through December 31, 2021 will be counted toward our current campaign.

83



[Type here] 

For more information contact: Eileen Hill, Executive Director, 831-479-6338 or eihill@cabrillo.edu 

“I am so appreciative of being a recipient of the WES grant. I am 
currently almost halfway through my second semester in the Nursing 
Program. 

The money I received, during my first semester, helped me pay for 
software that allows me to identify abnormal heart and lung sounds 
on my patients out in the field. Without the money at that time, I 
would have been unqualified to visit patients in the hospital with the 
rest of my cohort. I am very grateful.” 

-Alexis

This grant helped me pay for classes and textbooks I could not 
afford since I did not have the finances to pay for my education. It 
helped me continue studying without having to take a break and 
now I am close to graduating and transferring, which has been a 
dream of mine since I was little.  

I can’t thank you enough and the Women’s Educational Success 
grant.  

–Stephanie

I was awarded the WES grant and it was extremely helpful at the 
time. I have graduated from ultrasound program and I am now 
working for Stanford Hospital. 

I am very grateful for your support, thank you. 

-Yelena

Women’s Educational Success (WES) Grant Recipients 

84



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 19, 2021 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM:  Rachael Spencer 

SUBJECT: Scholarship Program 

While Cabrillo is affordable, rising textbook prices and the high cost of living in Santa Cruz County 
continue to be huge financial obstacles for our students. Cabrillo is fortunate to have a robust 
scholarship program that helps alleviate some of these burdens, allowing our students reach their 
educational goals. Despite the uncertainty surrounding COVID-19, scholarships help students plan 
for their future — knowing that they have financial support can encourage them to stay enrolled 
and gives them hope during challenging times. 

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 
• During the 2020-21 fiscal year, we awarded nearly $1.3 million in scholarships to 1297

students.
• Scholarship recipients were notified of their awards at the end of May and will receive their

funds in the next two weeks, provided they meet their scholarship’s criteria.

SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE 
• Committee members: Rachael Spencer (Chair), Claire Biancalana, Jess Brown, Ceil Cirillo,

Virginia Coe, Karen Cogswell, Kathryn Cowan, Linda Downing, Jan Furman, Rich Hart, Adele
Miller, Corinne Miller, Cori Ray, Julie Thiebaut, Rachel Wedeen and Jill Wilson

• Committee members serve as community ambassadors for our scholarship program.

DONOR COMMUNICATIONS 
• At the end of August, over 200 of our scholarship donors will receive a thank you card that

includes the name(s) of their 2021 scholarship recipient(s).
• In December, over 400 scholarship donors will receive our annual year-end scholarship

solicitation. This mailing includes thank you letters from scholarship recipients and personal,
hand-written notes from our scholarship committee members.

EVENTS 
• Zoom Event: Colligan Family Scholarship for First Generation Cabrillo Students

o In July we hosted a small Zoom event to celebrate some of the Colligan Family
Scholarship recipients and introduce the students to Bud and Rebecca Colligan. 11
students joined us for the call and spoke about being first generation students and
the impact of this generous scholarship, including one Cabrillo Alum who received
this scholarship in 2019. He has transferred to Cal Poly to study Electrical
Engineering.

• Scholarship Committee Meeting
o November TBD: we will discuss our year-end mailing and personalizing letters.

85



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
  
DATE:   August 19, 2021 
 
TO:    Executive Committee 
 
FROM:   Nancy Machado 
 
SUBJECT:  2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation Audit Schedule 
 
The following is a projection for the 2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation audit process: 
 
June 11, 2021 Auditor meets via Zoom with Audit Committee to review how 

the audit will be conducted. Terri Montgomery of Audit firm will 
attend meeting. 

Week of  
August 16, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation remote audit. 
 
September 6, 2021 Foundation receives proposed audit adjustments for review by 

Nancy Machado, Lynn Brisson, CPA and Pegi Ard, Foundation 
CFO. 

 
September 16, 2021 Foundation receives audit draft for review by Nancy Machado, 

Eileen Hill, and Pegi Ard, Foundation CFO. 
 
October 2021 (TBD) Audit Committee meets to review/accept audit draft.  

Representative(s) of Audit firm will attend meeting. 
 
October 21, 2021  Executive Committee receives e-mail audit draft for review prior 

to Executive Committee meeting. 
 
October 28, 2021 Executive Committee receives recommended audit draft   
 for review and acceptance.  
 
November 1, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation staff e-mails Audit Committee 

members a red-line draft Audit so they are made aware of any 
changes made to the Audit Report after the Executive 
Committee meeting. 

 
November 9, 2021 Cabrillo College Foundation Board of Directors meet to accept 

audit.  Representative(s) of audit firm will attend meeting. 

86



EXCLUSIVE EVENTS 
FOR PRESIDENT’S 
CIRCLE MEMBERS 

Virtual Back to School 
Celebration 
$1,000 + Members 
October 2021 TBD 

Sandy Lydon Virtual 
History 
$1,000 + Members 
April/May 2022 TBD 

Winemakers Dinner 
Sesnon House 
$2,500+ Members 
May 2022 TBD 

Dinner Party at the 
home of Vance Landis-
Carey and Robert Carey 
$5,000 + Members 
May/June 2022 TBD 

Drive-Thru Picnic 
Sesnon House 
$1,500+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 

Feasting with Faculty 
$10,000+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 

Homemade Pizza Party 
at the home of Claire 
Biancalana and Bill 
Kelsay 
$15,000+ Members 
Summer 2022 TBD 

*Due to Covid-19, all
events will be planned
with an eye for safety and
well-being of guests and
staff. All events are subject
to change.

EVENT DATES 

Colligan Family 
Scholarship Ceremony 
July 20, 2021 
10:00 am 

Heritage Club Lunch 
November 2021 TBD 

President’s Holiday 
Party 
December 3, 2021 

Faculty and Staff Grants 
Awards 
January 2022 TBD 
4:00 pm – 5:00 pm 

2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Meetings and Events 
Updated 8/12/2021 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
Tuesdays, 12:00-2:00 pm 
New Member Orientation 
September 14, 2021 
11:00 am-12:00 pm 

Meetings: 
September 14, 2021 
November 9, 2021 
February 8, 2022 
May 10, 2022 

AUDIT 
10:00-11:00 am 
October 2021 TBD 
May 2022 TBD 

EXECUTIVE 
9:00-10:00 am 
August 26, 2021 (Zoom) 
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 
October 28, 2021 
January 27, 2022 
April 21, 2022 

FINANCE AND 
INVESTMENT 
9:00-10:00 am 
August 19, 2021 (Zoom) 
October 14, 2021  
January 13, 2022  
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 
March 31, 2022 
(9:00 – 10:30 am) 

FACULTY GRANTS 
November 2021 TBD 

NOMINATING 
Dec 2021/Jan 2022 TBD 

PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE 
August 24, 2021 
5:30 – 7:30 pm  
(kick-off party) 

September 22, 2021  
9:00 am – 12:00 pm  
(signing pick up) 

March 2022 TBD  
5:30 pm – 7:00 pm 
(wrap-up party) 

WOMEN’S 
EDUCATIONAL 
SUCCESS (WES) 
September 10, 2021  
12:00 pm – 1:00 pm 
(Luncheon) 

SCHOLARSHIP 
November 2021 TBD 

CABRILLO 
ADVANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 
February 2022 TBD 
May 2022 TBD 
10:00 am

87



2020-21 Cabrillo College Foundation Committee Roster – Updated 8/12/2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Rob Allen 
Pegi Ard, CFO 
Michele Bassi 
Claire Biancalana, Past President 
Ceil Cirillo 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Paul De La Cerda, VP Instruction 
Matt Huffaker 
Amy Lehman,  VP Student 
Services 
Kelly Nesheim 
Ed Newman 
Bradley Olin, VP Admin.  
   Services, Asst. Treasurer 
Erica Ow 
Patty Quillin, Vice President 
Cory Ray 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
Dan Rothwell, College Trustee 
Gun Ruder, President 
Karen Semingson 
Rachael Spencer, College  
   Trustee 
Trevor Strudley 
Kate Terrell 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen, Secretary 
Matt Wetstein, Asst. Secretary, 
   CC President 
Kristin Wilson, Faculty 
  Representative 
Donna Ziel, College Trustee 

AUDIT 
Chair: Karen Semingson 
Carrie Birkhofer 
David Heald 
Barbara Scherer 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 

EXECUTIVE 
Pegi Ard, CFO 
Claire Biancalana, Past President 
Patti Quillin, Vice President 
Gun Ruder, President 
Rachael Spencer 
Rachel Wedeen 
Matt Wetstein, CC President 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado

FINANCE & INVESTMENTS 
CFO: Pegi Ard 
Owen Brown 
Karen Cogswell 
Marshall Delk 
David Heald 
Michael W. Machado 
Kelly Nesheim 
Gun Ruder 
Steve Snodgrass 
Trevor Strudley 
Staff: Eileen Hill 
   Nancy Machado 

CABRILLO ADVANCEMENT 
PROGRAM (CAP) 
Chair: Carrie Birkhofer 
Rob Allen 
Enrique Buelna 
Sesario Escoto 
Leola Lapides 
Rachel Mayo 
June Padilla Ponce 
Maria Esther Rodriguez 
Eva Acosta 
College Advisors: 
    Liz Dominguez  
   Michelle Donohue 
Staff: Eileen Hill, Caitlin Bonura 

FACULTY GRANTS 
Cherie Barkey 
Owen Brown 
Ted Burke 
Linda Burroughs 
Ceil Cirillo 
Les Forster 
Mary Gaukel 
Matt Huffaker 
Francisco Íñiguez 
Tobin Keller 
Amy Newell 
Gun Ruder 
David Schwartz 
Natalie Vanoli 
Staff: Eileen Hill, Caitlin Bonura 

NOMINATING 
Claire Biancalana 
Jess Brown 
Linda Burroughs 
Ceil Cirillo 
William Ow 
Gun Ruder 
Rachael Spencer 
Lead Staff: Eileen Hill 

PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE  
Co-chairs: 
  Linda Burroughs  
  Vance Landis-Carey 
Pegi Ard 
Jim Baker 
Pat Barton 
Michele Bassi 
Claire Biancalana 

Mary Blanchard 
Jess Brown 
Owen Brown 
Ted Burke 
Ceil Cirillo 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Lee Duffus 
Jim Emerson 
Kristin Fabos 
Duf Fischer 
Paula Fischer 
Peggy Flynn 
Joel-Ann Foote 
Mahlon Foote 
DeAnne Hart 
Rich Hart 
Jackie Heald 
Kent Imai 
Julie Lambert 
Marilyn Manning Lonergan 
Richard Lonergan 
Fred McPherson 
Bob Millslagle 
Kelly Nesheim 
Ed Newman 
Erica Ow 
William Ow 
Ginny Solari Mazry 
Burt Rees 
Rachael Spencer 
Steve Snodgrass 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen 
Matt Wetstein 
Theo Wierdsma 
Paula Woods 
Bjorg Yonts 
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 

SCHOLARSHIP 
Chair: Rachael Spencer 
Claire Biancalana 
Jess Brown 
Ceil Cirillo 
Virginia Coe 
Karen Cogswell 
Kathryn Cowan 
Linda Downing 
Jan Furman 
Rich Hart 
Adele Miller 
Corinne Miller 
Cory Ray 
Julie Thiebaut 
Rachel Wedeen 
Jill Wilson  
Staff: Caitlin Bonura 

WOMEN'S EDUCATIONAL 
SUCCESS (WES)  
Co-chairs: 
   Mary Culley 
   Tonée Picard 
Peggy Downes Baskin, cofounder 
Shannon Brady 
Sue Broadston 
Lynette Cleland 
Cathy Conway 
Freny Cooper 
Kathryn Cowan 
Cynthia Druley 
Cynthia FitzGerlad 
Corrine Flanagan 
Peggy Flynn 
Pam Goodman 
Amy Ivey 
Kathleen Jones 
Janet Krassow 
Angie McClellan 
Chris Maffia 
Martina O'Sullivan 
Mara Palandrani 
Carolyn Parham 
Gail Pellerin 
Patty Quillin 
Karen Semingson 
Rachael Spencer, cofounder 
Bunny Tavares 
Kate Terrell 
Karri White 
Kristin Wilson 
Donna Ziel 

WES Advisors: 
   Marcy Alancraig 
   Leti Amezcua 
   Jenna Becker 
   Rosemary Brogan 
   Sue Bruckner 
   Lauren Cole 
   Olga Diaz 
   Mario Garcia 
   Ofelia Garcia 
   Irma Gil 
   Holly Goodman 
   Gabby Huezo 
   Jay Jackson 
   Michelle Morton 
   Christina Ortega 
   Beth Regardz 
   Ana Rodriguez 
   Barbara Schultz-Perez 
   Nancy Spangler 
   Tasha Sturm 
   Laura Thurman 
   Windy Valdez 
   Marilyn Zanetti 
    Staff: Caitlin Bonura 

88


	MEMORANDUM
	DATE:        August 19, 2021

	Net Assets Report By Year 2000-2021 Current.pdf
	Net Assets Chart

	April 30, 2021 Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008
	009

	May 31, 2021 Financial Statements.pdf
	010
	011
	012
	013
	014
	015
	016
	017
	018

	CCF Financial Report Narrative for Finance Comm 6.30.21 updated 8.18.21.pdf
	 Our return on investments for the MS Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS ESG Long-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Intermediate-Term Pool year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Short-Term Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title III Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:
	 Our return on investments for the MS Title V Pool fiscal year to date as of
	July 31, 2021 (1 month) is as follows:

	June 30, 2021 Pre-Audit Financial Statements.pdf
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005
	006
	007
	008
	009
	010

	Committee Calendar 8.12.21.pdf
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	AUDIT
	EXECUTIVE
	NOMINATING




